
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session. 

Please ask for: 
Gurdip Paddan 

 
* Reporting to Cabinet 
 

7 April 2017 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING AND PLANNING PANEL to be held on Wednesday 19 April 2017  at 
7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, 
Herts, AL8 6AE. 
 

 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Executive Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 
 

1.   SUBSTITUTIONS  
 

 To note any substitution of Members made in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules 19-22. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

 To note apologies. 
  

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 16 March 2017 
(previously circulated). 
 

Public Document Pack



4.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 
11:  
 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on the Agenda. 
 

6.   PARKING SERVICES UPDATE AND FUTURE WORK PROGRAMMES: (Pages 5 
- 24) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Resources, Environment & Cultural Services) 
provides Members with an update on the current 2016/17 work programme and 
recommends the proposed 2017/18 work programme for parking restrictions and 
improvements. 
 

7.   HOUSING WHITE PAPER CONSULTATION RESPONSE: (Pages 25 - 40) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) and 
the Executive Director (Housing and Communities) on the Housing White Paper 
consultation response. 
 

8.   AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAMME MONITORING REPORT: (Pages 41 - 
58) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Housing and Communities) provides an update 
on the Council’s Affordable Housing Programme (AHP). 
 

9.   HOUSING ALLOCATION POLICY REVIEW: (Pages 59 - 66) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Housing and Communities) which sets out the 
rules for the Council’s Housing Needs Register (“HNR”) and how priority is 
awarded to households, based on their housing need. 
 

10.   MEASURES TO INCREASE CUSTOMER SATISFACTION WITH THE GAS 
SERVICING, BREAKDOWN AND NEW INSTALLATIONS PROGRAMME - 
UPDATE: (Pages 67 - 68) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Housing and Communities) on the actions being 
proposed to improve customer satisfaction levels resulting from work carried out by 
the Council’s contracted gas service and breakdown contractor – TSG Ltd. 
 

11.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUCH URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION:  
 

12.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC:  
 

 The Panel is asked to resolve: 
 
That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for Item 13 on the grounds that it 



involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined in 
Section 100(A)(3) and Paragraph 3 (private financial or business information) of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended). 
 
In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 
 

PART II 
 

13.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN EXEMPT NATURE AT THE DISCRETION OF 
THE CHAIRMAN:  
 

 
Circulation: Councillors S.Boulton (Chairman) 

M.Perkins (Vice-Chairman) 
D.Bell 
D.Bennett 
H.Bromley 
 

N.Chapman 
M.Cowan 
G.Hayes 
M.Holloway 
P.Shah 
 

   
 
 Executive Board 

Press and Public (except Part II Items) 
 
 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact  
Gurdip Paddan 01707 357349 or email: democracy@welhat.gov.uk  



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Item No: 6 
Main author: Vikki Hatfield 
Executive Member: Cllr Helen Bromley 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING AND PLANNING PANEL COMMITTEE – 19 APRIL 2017 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND CULTURAL 
SERVICES) 
 
PARKING SERVICES UPDATE AND FUTURE WORK PROGRAMMES  

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 Throughout the year, the Council receives many requests for parking restrictions 
and parking improvements, this can be through a number of different channels. It 
is important to manage the public’s requests and expectations. Producing a 
yearly work programme, which covers both parking restrictions and parking 
improvements, helps the Council to achieve this. 

1.2 It is important for Parking Services to ensure a consistent programmed approach, 
as it assists in the efficient management of Traffic Regulation Order (TROs) work 
and providing transparency to the public. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 The Panel notes the update on the current 2016/17 work programme and 
recommends the proposed 2017/18 work programme for parking restrictions and 
improvements (Appendix A) to the Cabinet for approval.  

2.2 The Panel recommend for the remainder of the Lemsford Road scheme and 
French Horn Lane scheme (both in Hatfield Central and East – Area 3 and 4) be 
placed on hold, until a decision has been made about the planning application for 
building the multi-storey car park in The Common.  

3 Explanation 

3.1 Hatfield town centre is currently been re-developed and as part of the Hatfield 
2030+ project will be looking at how the Council can unlock further development 
sites which have been highlighted within the town centre. Most of the sites are 
currently used for car parking, therefore the Council will be looking to submit a 
planning application this year to construct a multi-storey car park on The 
Common. The proposal is to re-provide the current parking provision into the 
multi-storey. 

3.2 With this in mind, it would make sense to stop further consultations with the 
immediate area of the town centre until a decision has been made on the 
planning application. The construction of the multi-storey is likely influence 
residents responses to any parking consultations which take place. Once a 
decision has been made both areas will be added back in to the work programme 
as previously agreed 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



- 2 - 

Parking Restriction work programmes 

3.3 Although Parking Services receive a number of requests from both residents and 
businesses to introduce or amend existing parking restrictions, a legal statutory 
process needs to be followed and completed before these can be implemented. 

3.4 This is to ensure a full consultation with all affected parties is conducted and all 
comments and formal objections are fully considered before any changes, if 
required to the current parking regime are introduced. 

There is an informal and formal consultation process, most schemes will have a 
number of informal consultations before progressing to the formal stage. 
Timescales for schemes are dependent on the feedback in each consultation. 
The Council needs to demonstrate that comments received have been taken into 
consideration and proposals amended as long as this doesn’t compromise the 
overall scheme. These changes will need then further consultation with affected 
parties. 

Parking Improvement work programmes 

3.5 In addition to the above, Parking Services allocate a percentage of the total 
budget for Housing projects. These monies are for improvements specifically 
needed by housing on works that would not fall into our work programme. This 
year’s allocation is £20,000. 

3.6 All Parking Improvements can be on either public highway, Council or on 
Housing land, dependent on which one will determine the approval process. All 
residents in the affected locations will be consulted on the proposals. 

3.7 Improvements proposed on the public highway or which have an impact on the 
public highway need to be approved by Herts County Council as the highway 
authority. These works will be constructed by their own approved contractor, 
Ringway.  

3.8 Improvements on Housing/Estate land need to be approved by our own Planning 
Department, by submitting a planning application before going to the contractor 
to begin construction. This approval process can take up to 8 weeks before 
passing through to a contractor. 

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 TROs are created under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. Consultations 
follow a statutory legal process as set out in The Local Authorities' Traffic Orders 
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996. No other legal implications 
are inherent in relation in to the proposals in this report. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 The cost of TRO works recommended in this report will be funded through 
existing Parking Services revenue budgets. 

5.2 Parking Improvements are funded through a Capital works programme which is 
agreed each year 

Page 6



- 3 - 

6 Risk Management Implications 

The risks related to this proposal are: 

6.1 A risk assessment has not been prepared in relation to the proposals in this 
report as there are no new significant risks inherent in the report. 

6.2 There is a potential for adverse or positive risk for the Council with regards public    
opinion for the management or introduction of new parking schemes. 

6.3 The amount of yellow lining and parking control within the borough continues to 
increase, and this increase may in due course require additional budget to 
ensure lining and signage is appropriate for enforcement. 

6.4 Due to legal processes and legal consultation involved, if part of the work 
programme identified cannot be completed within the 2016/17 financial year. It is 
suggested that they are addressed in the following year’s programme.  

7 Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no known security & terrorism implications associated with the content 
of this report. 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no procurement implications inherent in relation to the proposals in this 
report. 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 Key climate factors have been considered and are not thought to be applicable 
for this report. Parking Services do not envisage a change in the number of 
vehicles parking in the vicinity. 

10 Link to Corporate Priorities 

10.1 I confirm that the subject of this report is linked to three of the Council’s 
Corporate Priorities: 

 Protect and enhance the environment – Deliver effective parking services; 

 Help build a strong local economy – Revitalise our town centres and other 
shopping precincts and; 

 Engage with our communities and provide value for money 

11 Equality and Diversity 

11.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out.  The creation    
of Traffic Regulation Orders requires further statutory consultation.  An EIA will 
be completed during this process. 

Name of author (Vikki Hatfield – 01707 357555) 
Title (Parking and Cemetery Services Manager) 
Date (27th February 2017) 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Update on current and future Work Programmes 
Knightsfield & Haldens – Six monitoring period 
 
During the six month monitoring period, residents in a number of locations were consulted on 
proposals to introduce double yellow lines at junctions in the following areas:  

 Rowans 
 Postfield 
 Lumbards 
 Crookhams 

 
These were advertised and objections considered at the July 2016 meeting of CHPP. Their 
recommendation to progress to implementation was approved by Cabinet in August. The scheme 
commenced in October 2016, further changes have been suggested and these will be 
considered. 
 
Since the introductions of the single yellow line in Crookhams which are operational during school 
hours, the council has received information through the bus company that parents are parking 
and waiting for their children on the single yellow lines and this is causing congestion and is 
preventing the bus from been able to carry out their prescribed route. This will be addressed 
during the monitoring period of the above scheme and will continue into the new financial year. 
 
It is anticipated this project will finish in 2017/18. 
 
Welham Green 
 
Knolles Crescent 
Junction protection was introduced and became operational in April 2016. 
 
Somers Road and Bulls Lane 
Residents reported issues with non-residential parking which was reducing the amount of 
available parking for residents. In addition, parking too close to junctions was also hindering the 
movement of traffic. Residents in both locations specifically requested a resident parking permit 
scheme and this was formally advertised in September 2016. Objections were considered and 
after a site visit by some panel members the scheme was recommended to proceed to 
implementation and became operational in January 2017.  
 
Junction protection in various locations 
In addition to the two resident parking permit schemes in the above locations, a number of 
junctions had been highlighted by residents in need of protection. These were formally advertised 
at the same time as the above schemes and also became operational in January 2017. 
 
Travellers Lane – Business area 
A small number of businesses responded to the general questionnaire requesting double yellow 
lines on one side of the road to assist with the movement of their commercial vehicles. 
Further consultation is underway with businesses to finalise plans, these will be advertised before 
the end of the financial year and any objections received will be considered at a future meeting 
of CHPP. 
 

Page 9



2 
 

Parking Improvements 
 
Communal parking areas have been constructed in the following locations: 

 Somers Road –  12 parking spaces 
 Greville Close, Welham Green – 3 parking spaces 
 Gould Close, Welham Green - 3 parking spaces 

 
Garage Area – Dellsome Lane 
In addition to the above schemes, Parking Services are working with the Garages department, 
Planning and Housing Services to improve the garage area located at the rear of the shops on 
Dellsome Lane.  
 
The parking area facilitates the flats and currently there is inadequate parking provision which 
means vehicles are parking close to the garages and causing obstruction. A section of the drying 
area will be removed to create 7 more parking spaces and sections of double yellow lines will be 
proposed in areas which no parking should take place. To prevent parking in the garage forecourt 
a traffic regulation order will be created which will enable the enforcement team to issue penalty 
charge notices to those vehicles parking outside of the marked bays. The Order will be 
advertised, any objections received will be considered at a future meeting of CHPP. 
 
It is anticipated this project will finish in 2017/18. 
 
Brookmans Park – Six month monitoring period 
 
Bradmore Way and Peplins Way 
Residents had requested additional double yellow lines in two locations in the above roads.
The proposals were formally advertised in May 2016 and no objections were received. These 
were implemented and became operational in August 2016. 
 
Bradmore Green 
Requests from a small number of businesses requested a number of bays be changed from two 
hours limited waiting to one hour. This would facilitate some of the businesses who had visited 
which stayed for a shorter period of time, for example the post office and the  
Co-Op and this change would increase the chances of those customers finding available parking. 
The amendment to the original order was advertise in May 2016 and no objections were received. 
Six parking bays were changed to one hour limited waiting and became operational in August 
2016. 
 
Westlands Drive and Oaklands Avenue 
In the above roads there were already single yellow lines which restricted parking to all Monday-
Friday, 10-11am on one side of the road and 11am-12noon on the other side of the road. 
However, this restriction was only in place in a section and due to the number of changes in the 
parking restrictions in other roads, this was no longer fit for purpose. Residents had reported 
receiving penalty charge notices for not moving their vehicle to the other side in time for the 
change of the restriction. In addition, parking displacement had taken up the section of both roads 
which was unrestricted. Proposals for a resident parking permit scheme was advertised in May 
2016. A number of objections were received and these were considered at the CHPP meeting in 
June 2016. The panel recommended to proceed the changes to be implemented and these 
became operational in August 2016. 
 
With the last scheme, the six month monitoring period is due to be finished by the end of this 
financial year and Parking Services do not foresee any further changes. Therefore, the 
Brookmans Park project will be formally completed by the end of March 2017.  

Page 10



3 
 

Cuffley 
 
Junction Protection (double yellow lines) 
Requests were received for over 35 junctions to have double yellow lines introduced. 
All of the Cuffley schemes above were advertised in November 2015. No objections were 
received in response to the double yellow line proposals and these were introduced in June 2016.
 
Single yellow lines - operational Monday – Friday, 11am-1pm 
A large number of roads requested the extension of the single yellow line, which is  operational 
in some areas of Cuffley Monday – Friday, 11am – 1pm: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The proposals were formally advertised at the same time as the double yellow lines, November 
2015. A number of objections (40) were received, these in the main were from residents in 
Homewood Avenue, Cranfield Crescent and a section of Bacons Drive who either stated they 
were not required, or that this type of restrictions was too restrictive for residents as some needed 
to be able to park during the hours of operation. In response to the objections, Parking Services 
recommended that the three roads mentioned to be removed from the proposals to allow further 
consultation with those residents.  
 
The single yellow lines which were to be introduced were implemented in June 2016 
 
Homewood Avenue, Brookside Crescent, Cranfield Crescent and part of Bacons Drive 
Immediately after the introduction of the single yellow lines in June 2016, further consultation 
was carried out with residents in the above roads. In Homewood Avenue and Brookside Crescent 
the majority of responses was to keep the single yellow line as advertised to the junction of 
Brookside Crescent and not to extend this to the remainder of Homewood Avenue or any of 
Brookside Crescent. Residents were advised in writing to report any parking displacement or 
issues to Parking Services during the six month monitoring period and these would be addressed 
as part of this project. No requests have been received other than to extend the double yellow 
lines at both junctions with Tolmers Road. This was formally advertised in August 2016 and 
introduced in October 2016. 
 
The majority of residents in Cranfield Crescent and part of Bacons Drive, requested a resident 
parking permit scheme to be operational the same days and times as the single yellow line 
Monday – Friday, 11am-1pm. The proposals were advertised in August 2016 and a small number 
of objections were considered at CHPP and the Panel recommended for the scheme to be 
implemented. The scheme became operational in October 2016. 
 
The recent restrictions are in the six month monitoring period and further requests from residents 
will be addressed during this project 
 
So far, Parking Services have received requests for further restrictions in four areas: 

1. Bacons Drive (new single yellow line section) – change to a resident parking permit 
scheme 

2. Hill Rise junction with East Ridgeway – Junction protection and options for further 
restrictions towards Tolmers Avenue 

 Bacons Drive 
 Cranfield Crescent 
 High Ridge 
 Hill Leys 
 Homewood Avenue 

 Brookside Crescent  
 Kings James Avenue 
 Robins Way 
 Tolmers Avenue 
 Tolmers Road 

Page 11



4 
 

3. Tolmers Road, opposite Tolmers Gardens – Request for the single yellow line to be 
extended to Saturdays and resident parking permit bays on one section 

4. Station Road and Maynards Place – Formalise the disabled bay and change the 
restrictions and the parking area in Maynards place 

 
These requests will require further consultation with those directly affected and have begun in 
the first two areas. All four areas will continued into the new financial year. 
 
Hatfield Central & East 
 
Arm and Sword Lane 
Due to the re-development in part of Old Hatfield which has had a negative impact due to having 
to access the above new road via the Salisbury Square car park. Consultation has taken place 
with a small number of residents which the majority have opted for a resident parking permit 
scheme operating Monday – Saturday, 8am-6pm. 
 
This was advertised in April 2016, one objection was received and considered by CHPP in June. 
The Panel recommended the scheme to proceed and this became operational in August 2016. 
 
The Ryde  
A full consultation has been completed with all affected parties.  The majority of residents in the 
following roads opted for a resident parking permit scheme, operating Monday-Friday,  
10am-11am and additional restrictions in the form of double yellow lines in a number of junctions 
in the area: 
 

 Bull Stag Green 
 Burleigh Mead 
 Fawn Court 
 Greenfields 
 Highlands 
 Lodge Drive 

 
The proposals were advertise in May 2016, and six objections were received. These were 
considered by CHPP in the July 2016 meeting and the Panel recommended for the scheme to 
proceed and this was implemented and became operational in October 2016. 
 
This scheme is now in its six month monitoring period, any requests will be considered as part 
of this project.  
 
Three requests for the restrictions to be re-visited near to The Ryde School. Parking Services to 
meet with Martin Sears, Safer Routes for School Officer at HCC to see if further changes are 
needed. This will take place in the new financial year, it is anticipated this project will finish in 
2017/18. 

Birchwood area  
 
Heyford Way 
Residents in the above road have reported issues with parking congestion from non-residents 
parking and walking to the train station, for a number of years. The road was recently adopted 
by Herts County Council (HCC) therefore, consultation could begin. 
 

 Park View 
 Stag Green Avenue 
 Sunnyfield 
 The Holdings 
 The Ryde 

 

Page 12



5 
 

Although the carriageway was adopted by HCC, there was an unforeseen complication with this 
scheme as there were parking areas which were accessed from the carriageway, but were still 
classed as private. Residents were advised if parking restrictions were to be introduced these 
would only extend to the carriageway and the private parking areas would not be included. The 
majority of residents opted for a resident parking permit scheme to be introduced and this was 
formally advertised in August 2016. 
 
No objections were received in response to the formal advertisement and the scheme became 
operational in December 2016. 
 
Remainder of Birchwood Area 
Over 2000 residents in the remainder of the Birchwood area received parking proposals 
September 2016 which included double yellow lines at a number of junctions and the option to 
change or introduce a parking restriction in front of their homes.  
 
555 completed survey forms were returned to the council. Although this may seem a good 
response in total this only amounted to 26% of all residents. 
Due to the size of this area, it has been split into three sections: 

1. Cornerfield and surrounding roads 
2. Birchwood Avenue and surrounding roads 
3. Crop Common and surrounding roads 

 
The responses have been analysed and there have been three roads in which a majority 
response from residents opted for a resident parking permit scheme, these are: 

1. Great North Road 
2. Cecil Crescent  
3. Clarkes Road (including the section of Stonecross Road to the junction of St Albans Road 

East) 
 
In addition, the majority response from all residents was to proceed with the double yellow lines 
at the junctions and a significant number of residents requested some form of protection for the 
verges and the pavements. Therefore, a Verge and Footway Order will be formally advertised 
along with the double yellow lines and resident parking permit schemes. 
This Order is operational 24/7 and allows the Civil Enforcement Officers to issue a Penalty 
Charge Notice to vehicles they witness parking on the verge. It is a more practical piece of 
legislation than the current Bye-Law. 
 
All TROs will be created and formally advertised in the new financial year. 
 
Lemsford Road and surrounding roads 
 
Residents in the area to the north west of Fiddlebridge Road and closest to the Galleria have 
been consulted and the majority have opted for a resident parking permit scheme to operate 
Monday-Saturday, 9am-5pm. In addition there are currently a number of junctions which have 
single yellow lines on and these will be changed to double yellow lines. 
 
The TRO will be formally advertised once approved by HCC. 
 
Please the report for an update on the remainder of the overall project. 

Page 13



6 
 

Handside  
 
Over 3,000 parking questionnaires were delivered to all properties within the above area. The 
Council received over 1,000 completed forms, which have been collated and analysed. 
 
A ‘next step’ report was presented to CHPP last year which recommended for this large ward to 
be split into four sections: 

1. Longcroft Lane and surrounding roads 
2. WGC town centre 
3. North of Applecroft and Barleycroft Roads 
4. Remainder of the Ward 

 
Longcroft Lane and surrounding roads 
Residents in the above area responded to the consultation and the majority opted for a resident 
parking permit scheme to operate Monday – Saturday, 9am-5pm which is a shorted restrictions 
than is currently in place in some areas. Although the majority of residents in Parkfields were 
against the change from the single yellow line to the resident scheme, Parking Service decided 
to keep this road within the resident parking permit scheme, as some residents stated social 
isolation as family and friends were unable to visit during the restricted days and times (Monday 
– Saturday, 8am-6pm).   
 
Ten objections were received in response to the formal advertisement. These were considered 
by CHPP in the January 2017 meeting, the Panel recommended for Parkfields to be removed 
from the scheme. This recommendation was approved by Cabinet in February 2017. The scheme 
will become operational in the remainder of the roads on the 20th March 2017. 
 
In addition to the resident parking permit scheme, the first Verge and footway TRO was promoted 
by the Council. The borough has been using the verge by-law to manage vehicles parking on the 
verge, however this is an antiquated piece of legislation and has been unenforceable for some 
time. This TRO will enable the Council’s civil enforcement officers to issue penalty charge notices 
to vehicles parking on the verge or footway and this can be done 24/7. This will also be 
operational from the 20th March 2017 and will include Parkfields.  
 
This new TRO will be monitored and how this is received will define if this is rolled out to other 
areas within the borough. 
 
Car Parks – Parkmark  
 
The list of 8 car parks below have achieved the car park safety award which is awarded by the 
Police and is a nationally recognised accreditation: 

 Campus East Upper, Welwyn Garden City 
 Campus West, Welwyn Garden City 
 Cherry Tree, Welwyn Garden City 
 Hunters Bridge (multi-storey), Welwyn Garden City 
 Kennelwood Lane, Hatfield 
 Lemsford Road, Hatfield 
 Link Drive, Hatfield 
 The Common, Hatfield 

 
 
 
 

Page 14



7 
 

 
Off – Street Traffic Regulation Order 

 
Parking Services have been working on our first map based off-street order for the charging car 
parks in Welwyn Garden City and Cuffley. 
 
The ANPR manages the payment side of things, but reports have been received that vehicles 
not displaying blue badges are parking the disabled parking bays and with this new order the 
civil enforcement officer will be able to patrol and issue parking tickets to those vehicles they 
witness parking in such bays. 
 
Also, in some car parks vehicles are parking outside of the bay markings, and the enforcement 
team will be able to issue parking tickets to those vehicles too. 
 
This order was advertised on the 1st March 2017, if any objections are received they will be 
considered at a future meeting of CHPP. 
 
Parking Improvements 
 
Housing requests 
This financial year has seen the following works taken place: 
 

Location Scheme Approx 
Cost £ 

Burfield Close, Hatfield Parking bay for 5 vehicles. £9208.37 
Howlands House, WGC Marking out of parking bays £488.00 

Wickfield Close, Woolmer Green Marking out of parking bays. £488.00 
Millwards, Hatfield Marking out of parking bays. £250.00 
Total  £10,434.37 

 
Burfield Close, Hatfield 
 

          

Page 15



8 
 

 
After 

 
 

Parking Improvements 
 

Location Improvement Cost £ 
Harwood Close, WGC 
Springfields, WGC 
Badger Way, Hatfield 
Somers Road, Welham Green 

Parking bay for 4 vehicles  
8 vehicle hardstands and VXO’s 
Parking bay for 6 vehicles. 
Parking bays for 12 vehicles. 

£13,867.14 
£44,581.74 
£16,481.57 
£29,510.89 

Worcester Road, Hatfield Marking out of bays for 12 vehicles. £241.33 
Caponfield, WGC Marking out of bays for 7 vehicles. £241.33 
   
Total 41 Communal and 8 VXO’s £104,924.00
 

Springfields, WGC - During construction 
  

 

Page 16



9 
 

After 

 
 
Somers Road, Welham Green 
Before 

 
During 

 
 
 

Page 17



10 
 

After  

 
 

 
 
Further improvements in the form of fencing and adding shrubs around the new and existing 
parking bays will deter residents from driving over the parking bays and across the green to park 
even closer to their homes. This work ill be completed by the end of March 2017. 
 
Worcester Road, Hatfield - Before  

 

Page 18



11 
 

After 

 
 

 
 

Harwood Close, WGC – Before construction  
 

 
 

                      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



12 
 

                  During construction                                         After Construction                            
 

  
 
 

              
Badger Way, Hatfield – Before construction 

 

 
 

Page 20



13 
 

 
After construction 

 

 
 

 
Garage area renovations 
  
Caponfield Garages (No/s 16-52 evens) 
 
Parking Services have acquired a garage block comprising of 19 garages. The garage block is 
beyond repair, therefore Parking Services will be demolishing the garages and the surfaced 
checked and repaired where needed. 
 
The parking area will be intended for residential use, on a first come first served basis. 
 
The above scheme will cost approximately £30,000. 
 
Great Dell Garages (No/s 14-24) 
 
Parking Services have acquired a garage block comprising of 11 garages. The garage block is 
beyond repair, therefore Parking Services will be demolishing the garages and the surfaced 
checked and repaired where needed. 
 
Additional lighting will also be investigated for this site. 
The above scheme will cost approximately £50,000. 
 
Both schemes will be progresses into the new financial year. 
 

Page 21



14 
 

Car Park maintenance 
 

Car park Works Cost 
Common, Hatfield Lining works £725.00 
Dog Kennel Lane Car 
Park, Hatfield 

Resurfacing works. £3817.29 
Signing and lining works. £1166.10 

Link Drive Car Park, 
Hatfield 

Installation of x5 wooden posts. £944.85 

Digswell Park Road 
Car Park 

Pothole repairs. £926.47 

Moors Walk Car Park, 
Welwyn Garden City 

Surface repairs and lining works. £5416.53 

Haldens Car Park Surface repairs and lining works. £1645.12 
Campus East Lower 
Car Park 

Pothole repairs. £691.23 

Total (year to Jan 17) 
 
 

£15,332.59 

 
Alban Way Cycle Path, Hatfield 
 

Works Cost 
Sign maintenance survey – May 2016 £707.50 
Footway resurfacing £1496.55 
Sign maintenance survey – August 2016 and associated works i.e. 
cleaning/re-setting. 

£640.00 

Sign maintenance survey – December 2016 and associated works i.e. 
cleaning/re-setting. 

£431.50 

Alban Way footbridge repairs. £500.00 
Total (year to date) £3775.55 

 
Before                                                                                      After 
 

                    
 

Page 22



15 
 

Before                                                                   After 
 
Repairs to steps, Alban Way Cycle Route to De Havilland Close, Hatfield 

           
 
Parking Restriction Programme 2017/18 
 
Due to the size of current projects these will continue into the new financial year. It is anticipated 
that the following projects will finish in 2017/18: 

 Welham Green 
 Cuffley 
 Knightsfield (section of) and Haldens 

 
Projects continuing are: 

 Hatfield Central and East 
o Birchwood 
o French Horn Lane 
o Lemsford Road 
o Old Hatfield & Essendon 

 Handside 
o WGC town Centre 
o Roads north of Applecroft and Barleycroft 
o Reminder of the Ward 

 
 Off-Street Traffic Regulation Order 

Continue the TRO looking at updating the plans of the other non-charging car parks the 
Council are responsible for. 

Page 23



16 
 

 

Parking Improvements will continue to run alongside the Parking Restriction Programme 
2017/18. 
 
Areas will be assessed, with a view to construct parking improvements in advance of further 
consultations with residents for parking restrictions. These timescales may vary due to the 
approval processes which need to be followed, either internally or with Hertfordshire County 
Council before construction can commence. 
 
The team will be more focused on creating additional communal parking, and secondary will be 
to construct vehicular crossovers and hard-standing for Council tenants. 
 
Parking Services will continue to assist Housing Services with any schemes they wish to 
construct. 
 
 
 

Page 24



Part I 
Item No: 7 
Main author: Colin Haigh 
Executive Member: Cllr Mandy Perkins 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING AND PLANNING PANEL – 19 APRIL 2017 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND 
GOVERNANCE) AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITIES) 
 
HOUSING WHITE PAPER CONSULTATION RESPONSE 
 
1 Executive Summary 

 
1.1 The Government published its Housing White Paper in February 2017 and has 

asked for consultation responses by 2 May 2017. 
 

2 Recommendations 
 
2.1 That Members debate the proposed responses to the consultation questions. 

 
2.2 That Members authorise the Head of Planning and Head of Housing and 

Community Services in consultation with the Executive Member for Planning, 
Housing and Community to make any requested changes and submit the Council’s 
formal response. 
 

3 Explanation 
 

3.1 The Government published a Housing White Paper, called Fixing our Broken 
Housing Market, in February 2017.  Its introduction by the Prime Minister describes 
the broken housing market as one of the greatest barriers to progress in Britain 
today; it sets out four strategic objectives to address the countries current housing 
crisis  

 
a) Planning for the right homes in the right places 
b) Building homes faster 
c) Diversifying the market 
d) Helping people now 

 
3.2 The Government objectives seek to: build more homes, remove barriers to getting 

homes built more quickly once planning permission is granted, open up the 
development market to small builders and those who embrace innovative/efficient 
methods of housebuilding, improving safeguards in the private rented sector and 
doing more to prevent homelessness.  The Secretary of State for Communities and 
Local Government states in his introduction that the UK doesn’t have enough 
homes and that in turn has created a market that fails to work for far too many 
people.  
 

3.3 The paper highlights some key facts that explain why the housing market is broken: 
the average home costs almost eight times average earnings, houses can ‘earn’ 
more per day than the people living in them, the proportion of people living in the 
private rented sector has doubled since 2000, we have built 160,000 homes on 
average per year since the 1970s but the consensus is that we need somewhere 

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



between 225,000 and 275,000 per year to keep up with population growth and the 
country isn’t full as only 11% of land in England is built on. 
 

3.4 The Government maintains that a number of the proposals in the White Paper 
(particularly in relation to housing) build on consultations and reviews conducted 
over the last year, and only intends to consult on two key areas where they consider 
new proposals are being made: 
 
a) Planning (including changes to National Planning Policy Framework) 
b) Affordable Housing for Build to Rent 

 
3.5 The White Paper asks a total of 38 questions of interested parties about its 

proposals to fix the housing market, and the text below proposes answers (in blue 
italics) to some of those questions as well as other comments that officers consider 
could be made to the Government. 
 

3.6 Members should note that one of the main thrusts of the White Paper is to introduce 
more prescriptive mechanisms into the planning system for identifying housing need 
and then rewarding or penalising local planning authorities based on delivery rates.  
The proposals include a standardised approach for assessing housing requirements 
(Question 3b) and a multitude of thresholds at which a stronger presumption in 
favour of sustainable development will come into effect (Question 16a and Question 
29).  Officers are concerned that this adds further complexity to the planning system 
and makes it even more unnavigable for non-professionals.  There could be many 
reasons why the Council cannot get an up-to-date plan and agreed housing target 
in place and many reasons why housing might not come forward at the rates 
currently anticipated, all of which could result in far less desirable sites being 
developed (such as tall buildings and high densities on constrained brownfield sites, 
rural exception sites in villages, on previously developed land in the green belt, etc). 
 

3.7 From a Housing perspective, the White Paper is a summation of funding streams, 
initiatives and policy change that have been proposed throughout this 
administration. As a result the Government are not consulting on any housing 
proposals in the paper, as it builds on consultations and reviews conducted over the 
last year. 
 

Question 1  
Do you agree with the proposals to:  
 
a) Make clear in the NPPF that the key strategic policies that each local planning authority 
should maintain are those set out currently at paragraph 156 of the Framework, with an 
additional requirement to plan for the allocations needed to deliver the area’s housing 
requirement?  The strategic policies in Para 156 of the NPPF are clear and valid.  The first 
priority to “deliver the homes and jobs needed in the area” is sufficient such that an 
additional priority to plan for allocations for the area’s housing requirement is not needed. 
 
b) Use regulations to allow Spatial Development Strategies to allocate strategic sites, 
where these strategies require unanimous agreement of the members of the combined 
authority?  The introduction of combined authorities and spatial development strategies is 
a notable change to the current development plan system (something akin to the old 
Structure Plan system or the more recent LDF system), so this needs careful thought and 
explanation by the Government as part of the preparation of any regulations. 
 

Page 26



c) Revise the NPPF to tighten the definition of what evidence is required to support a 
‘sound’ plan?  The preparation of evidence is a significant factor in the time and resources 
it takes to prepare a Local Plan, so this proposal is welcomed. 

 
Question 2  
What changes do you think would support more proportionate consultation and 
examination procedures for different types of plan and to ensure that different levels of 
plans work together?  For information, it is not currently anticipated that Hertfordshire will 
pursue a combined authority approach, but debate is taking place about the merits of a 
county-wide spatial planning framework that helps to achieve greater consistency, reduces 
repeat work, explores better co-operative working and looks at long-term answers to some 
of the difficult planning, transport, infrastructure and funding challenges facing all 
boroughs/districts. 

 
Question 3  
Do you agree with the proposals to:  
 
a) amend national policy so that local planning authorities are expected to have clear 
policies for addressing the housing requirements of groups with particular needs, such as 
older and disabled people?  WHBC has prepared a Strategic Housing Market Assessment 
which considers the housing needs of particular groups, and these needs are reflected in 
emerging Local Plan policies.  This has been done on the basis of existing guidance, so it 
does not seem essential that further national policy is needed in this regard.  From a 
housing perspective, evidence is stacking up that meeting the changing housing needs of 
older people (who usually have health and mobility requirements) will kick-start the 
housing market, free up family sized homes that are in short supply and reduce the public 
health and care bill.  So plans for addressing this need should have individual and clear 
focus. 
 
b) from early 2018, use a standardised approach to assessing housing requirements as 
the baseline for five year housing supply calculations and monitoring housing delivery, in 
the absence of an up-to-date plan?  The White Paper implies that a standardised 
approach would be based on sub-national household projections, which are known to be 
subject to errors and local variations.  For example, the 2011 Census revealed that there 
were some 5,000 fewer people living in Welwyn Hatfield that earlier projections had 
estimated.  The Government should also acknowledge that there are many reasons why 
authorities do not necessarily have up-to-date plans in place, and this is often because of 
the challenge of identifying suitable sites for housing development – because of green belt, 
environmental and infrastructure constraints, as well as opposition from local people.  The 
use of a standardised approach will set a housing target but it does not necessarily 
overcome any of the other factors which make it difficult to actually deliver that target. 

 
Question 4  
Do you agree with the proposals to amend the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development so that:  
 
a) authorities are expected to have a clear strategy for maximising the use of suitable land 
in their areas?  WHBC considers that the appropriate place for expressing a clear strategy 
for maximising the use of suitable land for development is our Local Plan.  There are often 
many complex reasons why particular sites cannot be brought forward – it has not been 
promoted by the landowner, there are obstacles to its development, it relies on the 
resolution of an infrastructure limitation, it relies on the acquisition or compulsory purchase 
of other land, etc.  There is no reason why any other form of strategy would have greater 
success of achieving this than the Local Plan or other planning documents, and the 

Page 27



preparation of such a strategy will in practice divert resources away from these other 
statutory tasks.  An even stronger presumption in favour of sustainable development has 
the risks of putting more power in the hands of the pushiest landowners/developers to 
bring forward sites that are not ideally suited for development. 
 
b) it makes clear that identified development needs should be accommodated unless there 
are strong reasons for not doing so set out in the NPPF?  If the Government intends to 
create an even stronger presumption in favour of meeting identified development needs 
then it would be desirable for the NPPF to also provide more clarification on the strong 
reasons for not doing so.  Footnote 9 is simply a list. 
 
c) the list of policies which the Government regards as providing reasons to restrict 
development is limited to those set out currently in footnote 9 of the NPPF (so these are no 
longer presented as examples), with the addition of Ancient Woodland and aged or 
veteran trees?  WHBC considers that there are other very valid reasons why an authority 
might not be able to meet its identified development needs beyond those currently listed in 
Footnote 9.  In Welwyn Hatfield the capacity of existing infrastructure is a limitation on the 
amount of development that can be accommodated in the borough, and issues such as 
the capacity of the A1(M) and its junctions, A414 and its junctions and requirement for a 
new secondary school are not matters that can be easily resolved. 
 
d) its considerations are re-ordered and numbered, the opening text is simplified and 
specific references to local plans are removed? 
In overall response to Question 4, the proposed changes further strengthen the emphasis 
on allowing development unless there are very clear reasons not to.  It is likely to make the 
tensions between national / local policy and the reasons that people object to planning 
applications and ask them to be considered by our Development Management Committee 
ever more difficult to resolve.  For authorities such as Welwyn Hatfield, and most of the 
adjoining authorities we must seek to co-operate with, these changes do not resolve the 
inherent tension between the presumption in favour of sustainable development and the 
identification of green belt in NPPF footnote 9 as a reason to restrict development. 
 
Question 5  
Do you agree that regulations should be amended so that all local planning authorities are 
able to dispose of land with the benefit of planning consent which they have granted to 
themselves?  This proposal is welcomed.  From a housing perspective, this will speed up 
development / construction of small complex sites in particular. 

 
Question 6  
How could land pooling make a more effective contribution to assembling land, and what 
additional powers or capacity would allow local authorities to play a more active role in 
land assembly (such as where ‘ransom strips’ delay or prevent development)?  WHBC 
considers that this function will need to be enhanced if the NPPF is likely to include greater 
emphasis on the use of brownfield land and estate regeneration.  It is often anticipated for 
example that estate regeneration will be challenged by different tenures of 
homeownership.  Mechanisms by which the Council could justify compulsory purchase 
and pool land would help to overcome some of these challenges – otherwise the borough 
could face a presumption in favour of sustainable development on other brownfield and 
green belt sites.  From a housing perspective, land pooling has been successful in other 
countries but it needs full commitment at a national level, as the level of public input to 
negotiate public and private co-operation and provide incentives to succeed in land 
pooling, like providing the services and the supporting infrastructure requires resources 
and funding and is at odds with current policy on public spending.  However additional 

Page 28



powers to deal with ransom strips and some form of assessment as to reasonable costs 
and ability to speed up development process are needed and would be helpful. 

 
Question 7  
Do you agree that national policy should be amended to encourage local planning 
authorities to consider the social and economic benefits of estate regeneration when 
preparing their plans and in decisions on applications, and use their planning powers to 
help deliver estate regeneration to a high standard?  It would be helpful if the Government 
could set out what it actually considers to be the potential social and economic benefits of 
estate regeneration, before this Council supports the principle and expresses support for 
its inclusion in the NPPF and other national planning guidance.  WHBC accepts that estate 
regeneration could yield development opportunities, but that it is fraught with challenges, 
not least the disruption that might be caused to people’s lives and livelihoods, and once 
incorporated into guidance it would represent a very significant burden on the Council to 
consider and progress all options throughout the borough. 

 
Question 8  
Do you agree with the proposals to amend the NPPF to:  
 
a) highlight the opportunities that neighbourhood plans present for identifying and 
allocating small sites that are suitable for housing?  WHBC considers that neighbourhood 
plans could play a role in identifying and allocating small sites. 
 
b) encourage local planning authorities to identify opportunities for villages to thrive, 
especially where this would support services and help meet the authority’s housing needs?  
WHBC would like to see more explanation of how this might be achieved rather than 
express support at this stage, as the implications of allowing villages to thrive could 
undermined the character and identity that many village residents want to see protected 
and preserved. 
 
c) give stronger support for ‘rural exception’ sites – to make clear that these should be 
considered positively where they can contribute to meeting identified local housing needs, 
even if this relies on an element of general market housing to ensure that homes are 
genuinely affordable for local people?  WHBC policies already support the principle of rural 
exception sites to provide homes for local people.  The phrasing of this proposal runs the 
same risks that currently exist in affordable housing policies – namely that the provision of 
genuinely affordable local homes can be ‘watered down’ based on viability evidence 
submitted by the applicant and confirmed by independent analysis.  From a housing 
perspective, it is recognised that some open market sale will help landowners to bring sites 
forward for development to deliver affordable housing in village locations. 
 
d) make clear that on top of the allowance made for windfall sites, at least 10% of sites 
allocated for residential development in local plans should be sites of half a hectare or 
less?  WHBC considers that this depends entirely on the mix and sizes of sites that have 
been promoted for development in the borough.  It is a remarkably difficult process to 
identify small sites and the Council has therefore sought to allocate as many as possible 
within its emerging Local Plan and also favoured their inclusion in the windfall assumption 
and accepted they will come forward through the development management process over 
the lifetime of the Local Plan. 
 
e) expect local planning authorities to work with developers to encourage the sub-division 
of large sites?  It is difficult to see how WHBC could do anything more than encourage 
developers to sub-divide their sites; to which they can say ‘yes’ or ‘no’.  There is no 
planning justification for sub-division to be included as a condition. 

Page 29



 
f) encourage greater use of Local Development Orders and area-wide design codes so 
that small sites may be brought forward for development more quickly?  This is welcomed 
in principle but it should be acknowledged that it has resource implications for WHBC to 
prepare LDOs and design codes.  This Council was involved in a PAS pilot study that was 
unfortunately unsuccessful because the landowner pulled out of discussions part way 
through the project, with no explanation given as to why. 

 
Question 9  
How could streamlined planning procedures support innovation and high-quality 
development in new garden towns and villages?  There is a risk that streamlining reduces 
the time available for innovation and high quality.  In practice it relies very heavily on the 
landowner/developer being willing to propose a genuinely high quality scheme.  WHBC 
has experience of both highly committed and less committed landowners/developers 
putting forward strategic sites as part of the emerging Local Plan, and has sought to 
respond by entering into Planning Performance Agreements with these companies in an 
attempt to engage in meaningful masterplanning and design conversations and covert 
these into SPD.  Where landowners/developers submit planning applications before this 
process has concluded, one practical step might be for acceptable Design and Access 
Statements to be adopted by the Council as an SPD for the scheme.  This could reduce 
the risk of design proposals being ‘watered down’ by subsequent landowners/developers 
when the site is sold. 

 
Question 10  
Do you agree with the proposals to amend the NPPF to make clear that: 
  
a) authorities should amend Green Belt boundaries only when they can demonstrate that 
they have examined fully all other reasonable options for meeting their identified 
development requirements?  Although WHBC is entirely capable of examining what it 
considers to be other reasonable options, it would be desirable for guidance to define a 
fuller list, otherwise this leaves the matter wide open for debate at consultation and 
examination stage.  The list given in Para 1.39 of the White Paper for example refers to 
estate regeneration, which in itself is a potentially exhaustive process of looking at whether 
every single residential area in a borough/district could be redeveloped at a higher density. 
 
b) where land is removed from the Green Belt, local policies should require compensatory 
improvements to the environmental quality or accessibility of remaining Green Belt land?  
The current emphasis on sites being suitable, available and deliverable means that sites 
are generally selected where they have been promoted for development by landowners 
(as an unpromoted site is by virtue unavailable and undeliverable, unless the Council 
considers compulsory purchase).  The same situation could potentially apply in respect of 
making environmental or accessibility improvements to other parcels of green belt land 
that have not been selected for release and development.  It would be helpful if any future 
guidance made reference to whether compensatory improvements should be quantitative 
and/or qualitative. 
 
c) appropriate facilities for existing cemeteries should not to be regarded as ‘inappropriate 
development’ in the Green Belt?  This proposal is supported.  The Government may also 
wish to give thought to the status of crematoria, which are often best situated alongside 
cemeteries in green belt locations. 
 
d) development brought forward under a Neighbourhood Development Order should not 
be regarded as inappropriate in the Green Belt, provided it preserves openness and does 
not conflict with the purposes of the Green Belt?  WHBC disagrees with this proposal.  

Page 30



Whether a development is defined as appropriate or inappropriate in the green belt should 
always be based on what type or use of development it is.  Development should not be 
defined as appropriate in the green belt simply because it has been brought forward in a 
NDO.  There is a wider point that NDOs are discretionary activities that town/parish 
councils and community groups can choose to prepare, and hence are unlikely to be used 
consistently across the borough area, and by virtue across the country. 
 
e) where a local or strategic plan has demonstrated the need for Green Belt boundaries to 
be amended, the detailed boundary may be determined through a neighbourhood plan (or 
plans) for the area in question?  It should remain the responsibility of the strategic or local 
plan to define the broad extent of the new green belt boundary, and only allow a 
neighbourhood plan to determine the very precise boundaries.  This could be a difficult 
matter to explain through consultation and resolve at examination stage however.  As 
above there is a wider point that neighbourhood plans are discretionary activities that 
town/parish councils and community groups can choose to prepare, and hence are 
unlikely to be used consistently across the borough area, and by virtue across the country. 
 
f) when carrying out a Green Belt review, local planning authorities should look first at 
using any Green Belt land which has been previously developed and/or which surrounds 
transport hubs?  It is not necessarily the case that previously developed green belt land or 
green belt land that surrounds transport hubs is more appropriate for development than 
only parcels of green belt land.  The Council can see merit however in guidance which 
advises local authorities to look at previously developed land in the green belt as 
potentially suitable for development, in advance of undeveloped land in the green belt. 
 
Question 11  
Are there particular options for accommodating development that national policy should 
expect authorities to have explored fully before green belt boundaries are amended, in 
addition to the ones set out above?  WHBC cannot think of any at the current time. 

 
Question 12  
Do you agree with the proposals to amend the NPPF to:  
 
a) indicate that local planning authorities should provide neighbourhood planning groups 
with a housing requirement figure, where this is sought?  It is already a very challenging 
matter for LPAs to decide upon the housing requirement for their borough/district area and 
will therefore be at least as hard to define a requirement for neighbourhood planning 
areas.  Members will be aware that the emerging Local Plan considered a number of 
growth strategies before favouring a broadly proportionate distribution to towns and 
villages. 
 
b) make clear that local and neighbourhood plans (at the most appropriate level) and more 
detailed development plan documents (such as action area plans) are expected to set out 
clear design expectations; and that visual tools such as design codes can help provide a 
clear basis for making decisions on development proposals?  This proposal is welcomed, 
although it should always be acknowledged that design is subjective and that there are 
potentially many alternative acceptable design solutions for any given site/area. 
 
c) emphasise the importance of early pre-application discussions between applicants, 
authorities and the local community about design and the types of homes to be provided?  
This proposal is welcomed.  From a housing perspective, it is considered that pre-
application discussions are beneficial to speeding up the development process. 
 

Page 31



d) makes clear that design should not be used as a valid reason to object to development 
where it accords with clear design expectations set out in statutory plans?  Members will 
be aware that many of the discussions at Development Management Committee relate to 
the tensions between national/local design policies and the proposed design of a particular 
planning application and its perceived impact on residents.  Proposals are frequently 
refused for design, amenity and overlooking reasons.  It is not feasible that all of these 
matters can be satisfactorily anticipated and included in design policies.   
 
e) recognise the value of using a widely accepted design standard, such as Building for 
Life, in shaping and assessing basic design principles – and make clear that this should be 
reflected in plans and given weight in the planning process?  This proposal is welcomed, 
as a baseline level of design quality for all schemes to achieve and hopefully exceed.  It 
should however be absolutely clear that such design standards are “baselines” that are the 
minimum to be achieved rather than the maximum that needs to be done by applicants, as 
design must take full account of local circumstances.  From a housing perspective, it is 
considered that this would increase the appeal and ability of development in all areas. 

 
Question 13  
Do you agree with the proposals to amend national policy to make clear that plans and 
individual development proposals should:  
 
a) make efficient use of land and avoid building homes at low densities where there is a 
shortage of land for meeting identified housing needs?  Evidence may indicate that the 
market requires the construction of some homes at low densities, to help rebalance a 
settlement where there is a particular bias towards other types/densities of housing. 
 
b) address the particular scope for higher-density housing in urban locations that are well 
served by public transport, that provide opportunities to replace low-density uses in areas 
of high housing demand, or which offer scope to extend buildings upwards in urban areas?  
This Council already acknowledges the opportunity for higher density development in 
areas that are accessible by public transport.  It remains the case however that this must 
be balanced against the capacity of the site and the settlement to accommodate high 
density development.  In Welwyn Garden City it is necessary to consider garden city 
heritage.  In Hatfield it is necessary to consider impact on Hatfield House and gardens.  In 
villages it is often the capacity of services and infrastructure to accommodate high density 
schemes that must be carefully considered. 
 
c) ensure that in doing so the density and form of development reflect the character, 
accessibility and infrastructure capacity of an area, and the nature of local housing needs?  
Yes, this must remain an important consideration of high density development. 
 
d) take a flexible approach in adopting and applying policy and guidance that could inhibit 
these objectives in particular circumstances, such as open space provision in areas with 
good access to facilities nearby?  This is a matter for the Council to judge through its own 
Local Plan and at planning application determination stage, rather than something it is 
necessary to include in national guidance. 
 
Question 14  
In what types of location would indicative minimum density standards be helpful, and what 
should those standards be?  WHBC considers that this should be a matter for Local Plans 
and Neighbourhood Plans, rather than national guidance. 

 
Question 15  

Page 32



What are your views on the potential for delivering additional homes through more 
intensive use of existing public sector sites, or in urban locations more generally, and how 
this can best be supported through planning (using tools such as policy, local development 
orders and permitted development rights)?  WHBC is supportive of the One Public Estate 
initiative as a way of working with other public bodies to identify the scope for public sector 
sites to be put to better use.  WHBC has been taking to approach for some time, and 
although it cannot deliver huge numbers of new homes, it does provide more opportunity 
for selected unit types (i.e. bungalows).  Existing partnerships are in place to deliver with 
registered providers and others.  

 
Question 16  
Do you agree that:  
 
a) where local planning authorities wish to agree their housing land supply for a one-year 
period, national policy should require those authorities to maintain a 10% buffer on their 5 
year housing land supply?  There is no clear reason why LPAs seeking to agree their 
housing land supply through this route should be required to have a 10% buffer, when the 
figures in the NPPF are 5% as a matter of course or 20% where there is persistent under-
delivery.  It appears to add further complexity to the planning system and make it even 
more unnavigable for non-professionals. 
 
b) the Planning Inspectorate should consider and agree an authority’s assessment of its 
housing supply for the purpose of this policy?  This sounds like it could create a lot of work 
for LPAs and PINS, particularly if it must go through consultation, submission and public 
examination.  It will divert attention away from strategic, local and neighbourhood plans 
and other planning work. 
 
c) if so, should the Inspectorate’s consideration focus on whether the approach pursued by 
the authority in establishing the land supply position is robust, or should the Inspectorate 
make an assessment of the supply figure?  As above, an establishment of robustness is 
likely to be less work than a full assessment of the supply figure. 

 
Question 17  
In taking forward the protection for neighbourhood plans as set out in the Written 
Ministerial Statement of 12 December 2016 into the revised NPPF, do you agree that it 
should include the following amendments:  
For Members’ information, the ministerial statement states that “Relevant policies for the 
supply of housing in a neighbourhood plan should not be deemed to be out-of-date under 
Para 49 of the NPPF where all of the following circumstances arise at the time the decision 
is made: (i) this written ministerial statement is less than 2 years old, or the neighbourhood 
plan has been part of the development plan for 2 years or less, (ii) the neighbourhood plan 
allocates sites for housing and (iii) the local planning authority can demonstrate a three 
year supply of deliverable housing sites. 
 
a) a requirement for the neighbourhood plan to meet its share of local housing need?  
WHBC would request further guidance on how a neighbourhood plan would calculate its 
‘share’ of local housing need. 
 
b) that it is subject to the local planning authority being able to demonstrate through the 
housing delivery test that, from 2020, delivery has been over 65% (25% in 2018; 45% in 
2019) for the wider authority area?  WHBC considers that this proposal adds further 
complexity to the planning system and makes it even more unnavigable for non-
professionals. 

Page 33



c) should it remain a requirement to have site allocations in the plan or should the 
protection apply as long as housing supply policies will meet their share of local housing 
need? 

 
Question 18  
What are your views on the merits of introducing a fee for making a planning appeal? We 
would welcome views on:  
 
a) how the fee could be designed in such a way that it did not discourage developers, 
particularly smaller and medium sized firms, from bringing forward legitimate appeals. 
 
b) the level of the fee and whether it could be refunded in certain circumstances, such as 
when an appeal is successful. 
 
c) whether there could be lower fees for less complex cases. 
In overall response to Question 18, the planning appeal system forms one of the many 
checks-and-balances aspects of the planning system.  The current inference is that 
applicants have paid their original planning application fee, received a refusal and then 
wish to test that decision with the Planning Inspectorate.  The introduction of a planning 
appeal fee would imply that the presumptive start point is that the LPA has made the right 
decision by refusing the application.  It therefore seems reasonable that a planning appeal 
fee should be returned if PINS decide to overturn the LPA’s decision.  A planning appeal 
fee could also deter spurious appeals and thereby reduce workloads for overstretched 
planning officers.  It makes sense that planning appeals should have a different fee 
depending on their size/complexity.  It would also seem appropriate for the planning 
appeal fee to be split between the LPA and PINS, as both bodies incur costs in 
respectively defending/determining them. 

 
Question 19  
Do you agree with the proposal to amend national policy so that local planning authorities 
are expected to have planning policies setting out how high quality digital infrastructure will 
be delivered in their area, and accessible from a range of providers?  It would be 
preferable that this is a matter for digital infrastructure providers to make LPAs aware of 
any matters relating to their local plan.  

 
Question 20  
Do you agree with the proposals to amend national policy so that:  
 
a) the status of endorsed recommendations of the National Infrastructure Commission is 
made clear? 
 
b) authorities are expected to identify the additional development opportunities which 
strategic infrastructure improvements offer for making additional land available for 
housing?  
 
Question 21  
Do you agree that:  
 
a) the planning application form should be amended to include a request for the estimated 
start date and build out rate for proposals for housing?  This would be very helpful if there 
is to be a greater emphasis on housing delivery and an expectation that LPAs will be held 
accountable for housing delivery in their area.  The information can be used to inform the 
AMR and five year housing land supply.  From a housing perspective, this would be 
helpful, especially when setting housing priorities and would hopefully influence future 

Page 34



planning decisions, but it needs to go hand in hand with penalties for not complying with 
committed dates without good reason. 
 
b) that developers should be required to provide local authorities with basic information (in 
terms of actual and projected build out) on progress in delivering the permitted number of 
homes, after planning permission has been granted?  This proposal is welcomed, although 
it is unclear how developers will be held to account, and it implies that the burden will be 
on the Council to regularly contact all developers with housing planning permission in their 
area to seek to secure this information.  From a housing perspective, this would be helpful, 
as it would send the right message to landowners and developers that the relevant 
outcomes are expected and are monitored. 
 
c) the basic information (above) should be published as part of AMRs?  This proposal is 
acceptable. 
 
d) that large housebuilders should be required to provide aggregate information on build 
out rates?  This proposal is welcomed. 

 
Question 22  
Do you agree that the realistic prospect that housing will be built on a site should be taken 
into account in the determination of planning applications for housing on sites where there 
is evidence of non-implementation of earlier permissions for housing development?  No.  
There may be very good reasons why housing was not implemented as part of an earlier 
permission.  This proposal runs the risk of refusing housing on sites that could be 
delivered, even if it has not happened on previous occasions.  It could sterilise sites based 
on a chequered history that may relate to a different landowner. 

 
Question 23  
We would welcome views on whether an applicant’s track record of delivering previous, 
similar housing schemes should be taken into account by local authorities when 
determining planning applications for housing development.  It is a basic principle of 
planning that applications are determined on their own merits.  This proposal would place 
a significant burden on WHBC to investigate the track record of an applicant, which could 
result in many issues beyond the planning system being debated in delegated and 
committee reports and by Members at Development Management Committee.  There may 
be very good reasons why an applicant has not been able to deliver a previous 
site/scheme. 
 
Question 24  
If this proposal were taken forward, do you agree that the track record of an applicant 
should only be taken into account when considering proposals for large scale sites, so as 
not to deter new entrants to the market?  As above, WHBC does not consider that this 
proposal should be taken forward.  The Council’s local experience is that it is small-scale 
landowners/developers who don’t quickly progress sites on securing planning permission. 

 
Question 25  
What are your views on whether local authorities should be encouraged to shorten the 
timescales for developers to implement a permission for housing development from three 
years to two years, except where a shorter timescale could hinder the viability or 
deliverability of a scheme?  We would particularly welcome views on what such a change 
would mean for SME developers.  WHBC does not have any particular experience of sites 
taking many years to be implemented, so does not have any concerns about a 3 year 
timescale.  WHBC would prefer that a degree of flexibility is offered to councils to decide 
the appropriate implementation period for schemes in their area.  The Council’s local 

Page 35



experience is that landowners/developers are more likely to implement their permission 
(i.e. by digging foundations or other early works) but never actually complete them. 

 
Question 26  
Do you agree with the proposals to amend legislation to simplify and speed up the process 
of serving a completion notice by removing the requirement for the Secretary of State to 
confirm a completion notice before it can take effect? 
 
Question 27  
What are your views on whether we should allow local authorities to serve a completion 
notice on a site before the commencement deadline has elapsed, but only where works 
have begun?  What impact do you think this will have on lenders’ willingness to lend to 
developers? 

 
Question 28  
Do you agree that for the purposes of introducing a housing delivery test, national 
guidance should make clear that:  
 
a) The baseline for assessing housing delivery should be a local planning authority’s 
annual housing requirement where this is set out in an up-to-date plan?  This proposal is 
welcomed.  The figure to be used should be the annualised housing target, rather than a 
baseline however. 
 
b) The baseline where no local plan is in place should be the published household 
projections until 2018/19, with the new standard methodology for assessing housing 
requirements providing the baseline thereafter?  WHBC considers that there may be very 
good reasons why a LPA has been unable to produce an up-to-date plan which may relate 
to inherent infrastructure or environmental limitations, and that these cannot be overcome 
simply by introducing a new way of calculating a housing target.  Officers have noted when 
completing the annual housebuilding return that it uses a different definition of what can be 
counted as a dwelling house to the definition used in Planning Practice Guidance, notably 
in respect of student accommodation.  The resolution of this matter would be welcomed. 
 
c) Net annual housing additions should be used to measure housing delivery?  This 
proposal is accepted. 
 
d) Delivery will be assessed over a rolling three year period, starting with 2014/15 – 
2016/17?  Selecting a historic start date means that some authorities may be immediately 
affected by this proposal, even where there are very good reasons why they have been 
unable to produce an up-to-date plan.  It would be fairer to give authorities time to prepare 
an up-to-date plan or at minimum to ‘bank’ their target through the Planning Inspectorate. 

 
Question 29  
Do you agree that the consequences for under-delivery should be:  
 
a) From November 2017, an expectation that local planning authorities prepare an action 
plan where delivery falls below 95% of the authority’s annual housing requirement? 
 
b) From November 2017, a 20% buffer on top of the requirement to maintain a five year 
housing land supply where delivery falls below 85%? 
 
c) From November 2018, application of the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development where delivery falls below 25%? 

Page 36



d) From November 2019, application of the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development where delivery falls below 45%? and  
 
e) From November 2020, application of the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development where delivery falls below 65%? 
WHBC does not consider that the consequences of under-delivery of housing should fall 
upon the Council and its residents, if it is actually because developers are not building out 
their sites fast enough.  There is no certainty that the preparation of an action plan, buffers 
or the enhanced presumption in favour of sustainable development will have any delivery 
success if there are inherent local reasons why development is not proceeding at a faster 
rate than hoped for – such as a major infrastructure limitation, finance challenges, the lack 
of building materials or the lack of builders and other professionals.  The proposals above 
add further complexity to the planning system and make it even more unnavigable for non-
professionals. 
 
Question 30  
What support would be most helpful to local planning authorities in increasing housing 
delivery in their areas?  National policy currently requires this Council to act as both judge 
and jury, by carrying out housing evidence to identify an objective housing need and then 
contemplating the release of green belt land to help meet that need.  Many Members and 
members of the public regard this approach as incompatible with the assertions in the 
NPPF and by MPs that the green belt is very important and should only be developed in 
very special circumstances.  WHBC considers that the Government should take some 
national responsibility for accepting that some development must take place in the green 
belt in order to tackle the housing crisis. 

 
Question 31  
Do you agree with our proposals to:  
 
a) amend national policy to revise the definition of affordable housing as set out in Box 4?  
 
b) introduce an income cap for starter homes?  WHBC considers that all of the proposed 
definitions are acceptable, but starter homes should not be regarded as meeting housing 
need, in replacement for affordable products and local affordability as needs have got be 
taken into account.  Discounted sales are not a common product and if considered 
affordable can conflict with shared ownership and possibly starter homes.  
 
c) incorporate a definition of affordable private rent housing?  WHBC agrees that a 
definition of affordable private rented sector housing is required, as evidence indicates 
many young people cannot afford private rents. 
 
d) allow for a transitional period that aligns with other proposals in the White Paper (April 
2018)?  WHBC considers that this may assist. 

 
Question 32  
Do you agree that:  
 
a) national planning policy should expect local planning authorities to seek a minimum of 
10% of all homes on individual sites for affordable home ownership products?  Yes, 
WHBC supports some form of product that is suitable for affordable home ownership. 
 
b) that this policy should only apply to developments of over 10 units or 0.5 ha?  
WHBC considers that these are matters that should be decided at a local level based on 
local evidence. 

Page 37



 
Question 33  
Should any particular types of residential development be excluded from this policy? 
WHBC considers that student accommodation should be excluded from the policy. 
 
Question 34  
Do you agree with the proposals to amend national policy to make clear that the reference 
to the three dimensions of sustainable development, together with the core planning 
principles and policies at paragraphs 18-219 of the NPPF, together constitute the 
Government’s view of what sustainable development means for the planning system in 
England?  This proposal is welcomed. 

 
Question 35  
Do you agree with the proposals to amend national policy to:  
 
a) Amend the list of climate change factors to be considered during plan-making, to 
include reference to rising temperatures?  WHBC is supportive of this proposal in principle 
but wonders how realistic it will be to make an assessment of plan-making and the direct 
impact of its policies on temperatures. 
 
b) Make clear that local planning policies should support measures for the future resilience 
of communities and infrastructure to climate change?  This proposal is welcomed. 

 
Question 36  
Do you agree with these proposals to clarify flood risk policy in the NPPF?  Yes, WHBC 
would welcome clarification of the flood risk policy. 

 
Question 37  
Do you agree with the proposal to amend national policy to emphasise that planning 
policies and decisions should take account of existing businesses when locating new 
development nearby and, where necessary, to mitigate the impact of noise and other 
potential nuisances arising from existing development?  WHBC already takes this matter 
into account, but agrees that the point should be emphasised in national policy.  This is 
particularly challenging in circumstances where offices are converted to residential use 
under permitted development, and the Council then receives complaints from new 
residents about noise from nearby commercial premises. 

 
Question 38  
Do you agree that in incorporating the Written Ministerial Statement on wind energy 
development into paragraph 98 of the NPPF, no transition period should be included?  For 
Members’ information, the ministerial statement states that local people should have the 
final say on wind farm applications and that local planning authorities should only grant 
planning permission if (i) the development site is in an area identifiable as suitable for wind 
energy development in a Local Plan or Neighbourhood Plan and (ii) following consultation 
it can be demonstrated that the planning impacts identified by affected local communities 
have been fully addressed and therefore the proposal has their backing.  This means that 
suitable areas for wind energy development will need to have been allocated in a Local 
Plan or Neighbourhood Plan.  The emerging Local Plan does not include any land that is 
allocated for wind energy development.  The proposal therefore implies that it would not be 
possible to build any wind farm schemes in the borough. 
 
4 Link to Corporate Priorities 

 

Page 38



4.1 The subject of this report is linked to Priority 3 of the Council’s Business Plan 2015-
2018 to meet the borough’s housing need. 
 

5 Legal Implications 
 

5.1 There are no legal implications associated with responding to this consultation 
exercise. 
 

6 Financial Implications 
 

6.1 There are no financial implications associated with responding to this consultation 
exercise, other than officer time. 
 

7 Risk Management Implications 
 

7.1 The risk management implications of responding to this consultation exercise is that 
the Council is expressing a view on certain planning and housing proposals that 
may ultimately come to form part of national guidance. 
 

8 Security and Terrorism Implications 
 

8.1 There are no security or terrorism implications associated with responding to this 
consultation exercise. 
 

9 Procurement Implications 
 

9.1 There are no procurement implications associated with responding to this 
consultation exercise. 
 

10 Climate Change Implications 
 

10.1 There are no climate change implications associated with responding to this 
consultation exercise.  There are however climate changes implications in the 
sense that the Government may introduce new national energy and climate change 
policies that will affect the Council’s plan-making and planning application 
determination processes. 
 

11 Policy Implications 
 

11.1 The implications of this report are that the Government will introduce new national 
planning and housing policies that will affect this Council. 
 

12 Equalities and Diversity 
 

12.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out in connection with 
this report because it only offers comments on national policy proposals rather than 
recommending any changes to local policies and because it is the responsibility of 
the Government to assess any policies it subsequently chooses to implement. 
 

Name of authors Colin Haigh  Rachel Sesstein 
Titles Head of Planning Housing Strategy & Development Officer 
Date April 2017  April 2017 
 
Background Paper: 

Page 39



 
DCLG Housing White Paper: Fixing the Broken Housing Market 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/fixing-our-broken-housing-market 

Page 40

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/fixing-our-broken-housing-market


- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Jeremy Morton  
Executive Member: Cllr Mandy Perkins 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING AND PLANNING PANEL– 19 APRIL 2017 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITIES) 
 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAMME MONITORING REPORT MARCH 2017 
 
1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the Councils Affordable 
Housing Programme (AHP). Updates will be provided to this committee twice a 
year.  

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee note the content of this report. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 At their meeting of the 4th December 2012 Cabinet agreed a range of methods to 
deliver the Councils Affordable Housing Programme (AHP). And that a 
monitoring report should be presented to this committee, setting out the budget 
and progress in delivering new affordable homes.  An overview of progress to 
date and a more detailed monitoring report setting out current schemes are 
attached at Appendix A and B. 

3.2 The AHP is managed via an officer project group which meets monthly and 
overseen by a steering group which meets bi – monthly. The Executive Member 
for Planning, Housing and Community is a member of the steering group which 
provide strategic direction, considers the budget and recommends any 
reallocation of funds between different delivery methods as required. 

3.3 A strategic review of the Affordable Housing Programme was completed in 
February 2016 and in June 2016 Cabinet approved the proposed Vision 
Statement, key aims and a delivery plan to deliver 600 affordable homes by 
2021.    

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 The Council has signed an agreement with the government to deliver the AHP 
using the available Right to Buy Receipts in accordance with the rules in the 
agreement. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 The budget for the programme is monitored through the normal budgetary control 
reports and by a detailed review each quarter, prior to the quarterly returns made 
to the government.  Appendix C. 

Page 41

Agenda Item 8



- 2 - 

5.2 In summary there have been 383 RtB sales to date and retained receipts of 
£24,927,460.  We have plans to fully utilise these receipts during the programme 
period.  There is an accrued interest penalty on unused receipts (should we not 
meet our spending targets) How large a penalty this would be is dependent on 
when this money is repaid should we cease expenditure our accrued interest 
penalty would stand at just over £675kat present.. 

5.3 The capital budget for the programme this financial year was updated at the 
September half year capital expenditure review to £19,046,212 (which includes a 
roll forward from last year of £9,496,690).  The expenditure and commitments at 
the end of Quarter three were 16,190,366 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 The affordable housing Programme has a risk management strategy in place 
which is regularly monitored by the project and Steering Group with separate risk 
registers for each initiative and project. 

6.2 The programme is highlighted on the councils Corporate Risk Register. 

7 Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no direct security and terrorism implications in this report or the 
Affordable Housing Programme  

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no direct procurement implications in relation to this report  

 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 The delivery of new affordable homes provides mechanisms for a range of 
products and initiatives that help reduce carbon emissions and tackle fuel 
poverty. New homes are built to high standards that help address climate change 
concerns including CO2, water and waste reduction; use of local labour and 
transport and modern methods of construction all consider the green footprint. 

10 Link to Corporate Priorities 

10.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority 3 Meet the 
borough’s housing needs and specifically to the council’s statutory requirements 
under the Homelessness legislation. 

11 Equality and Diversity 

11.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out in connection with 
the proposals that are set out in this report. An EIA is in place for the AHP and 
EIAs are carried out for specific initiatives and projects that are part of the AHP 
as required. 

 
Name of author Jeremy Morton extension 01707 357723 
Title Principal Housing Development Manger 
Date January 2017 
 

Page 42



- 3 - 

 
 
Background papers to be listed  

Cabinet report 4th December 2012 

Cabinet Housing & Planning Panel November 2015 

Cabinet report 14th June Strategic Review Affordable Housing Programme 

Appendix A     Affordable Housing Programme Overview  

Appendix B     Affordable Housing Programme Monitoring 

 Appendix C     Financial Monitoring  

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Affordable Housing Programme Overview February 2017 
 

1 
 

Appendix A 
Affordable Housing Programme Overview February 2017 
 

Completed Schemes February 2017 Status/Total Numbers 
Delivered 

Cherry way  new build  Funding  to Paradigm Housing  Completed   4 

Elizabeth Close new build Funding to Welwyn Garden City HA  Completed  3 

Sir Fredrick Osborn new 
build 

Funding to High Town Praetorian  Completed  5 

Phase 1 former garage site 
disposals to Registered 
Provider new build 

Funding to Welwyn Garden City HA Completed  17 

Open Market Purchase A mixture of two, three and four bedroom 
houses, now managed by the Housing Trust 

Completed 68 

Open Market Purchase RP  One and two bedroom flats purchased with grant 
funding 

Completed 4 

 Total Completed 101 

 
 

Current Schemes - targets 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Progress to date 
(February  2017) 

 

Open market purchase 
Council 

37 20 15 32 purchased, 
two offers 
accepted, 1 
further property 
to be identified 

On track to meet 
target  

32 

Garden Avenue 
Direct construction for the 
council 

 22  
 
 
 

Contract has 
been let, start on 
site in July. On 
site  

On target 
completion due 
December 2017 

0 

P
age 45



Affordable Housing Programme Overview February 2017 
 

2 
 

Current Schemes - targets 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Progress to date 
(February  2017) 

 

Furzen Crescent 
Direct construction for the 
council  
 

 7  Contract has 
been awarded. 
Demolition of 
vacant garages 
complete  

On target  
Completion due 
2018 

0 

Open Market Purchase  
Registered Providers 

18   Market 
conditions/ 
property prices 
impact on 
purchase/ 
Initiative closed   

In the current 
market condition 
it is not 
anticipated that 
further 
properties can 
be purchased by 
the RPs. 

4 

Phase 2 garage site 
disposals to RP 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 21  Planning 
secured. 
Sites tendered to 
Registered 
Provider (RP) 
Framework 
group; 
Bids evaluated 
and WGCHA 
selected. Pre-
construction 
phased 
programme being 
worked up by RP. 
Due to some 
unknowns at the 
tender stage it is 

Welwyn Garden 
City HA selected 
On target 
Land 
transfers/site 
assembly 
progressing 
Initial  target for 
completion  late 
2017/ early 18  

0 

P
age 46



Affordable Housing Programme Overview February 2017 
 

3 
 

Current Schemes - targets 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Progress to date 
(February  2017) 

 

 
 

anticipated that 
some schemes 
will need 
amendments  
Demolition of  
garages at vacant 
Hillcrest site 
complete 

Phase 3 garage site 
disposal to RP  

  To be 
confirmed 

Corporate Group 
has met to agree 
possible sites. 
Initial feasibility 
work complete, 
further detailed 
work / searches / 
surveys being 
undertaken. 
Additional sites 
required prior to 
sign off  at 
steering group  
Planning to be 
secured and then 
sites tendered to 
RP Frame work 
group   

Target numbers 
and dates to be 
set. 
Initial target  for 
completion 2018 
be agreed  
 

0 

North down road – direct 
construction for council  

 
 
 
 

 16 Resident 
consultations 
completed; 
Planning 

On target 
Target for 
completion 
18/19 

0 

P
age 47



Affordable Housing Programme Overview February 2017 
 

4 
 

Current Schemes - targets 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Progress to date 
(February  2017) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

application 
approved. Site 
tendered to 
construction  
companies  
Bids due in Feb 
17. 
Recommendation  
to Cabinet 
anticipated March 
17 

Little Mead – direct 
construction for council  

 7  Feasibility work 
completed on 
former garage 
site. Resident 
consultation 
complete 
December 16. 
Planning 
application 
submitted March 
17.     

On target.  
Target for 
completion 2018 

0 

Sheltered Housing  / 
scheme options review – 
direct construction for 
council 

   
 
 
 
 
 

Initial work on 
existing schemes 
completed. 
Linked as part of 
the asset review 
and older person 

3 possible sites  
considered for 
possible 
redevelopment, 
either general 
needs 

0 

P
age 48



Affordable Housing Programme Overview February 2017 
 

5 
 

Current Schemes - targets 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Progress to date 
(February  2017) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

housing needs 
survey and 
strategy –
medium – longer 
term initiative – 
number to be 
agreed and 
timescales. 
Report on 
decommissioning 
of 2 sites and 
redevelopment of 
one to March 
CHPP  

accommodation,  
new older 
person housing 
– or 
refurbishment of 
existing units  
Council owned 
sites  
 

All saints site WGC direct 
construction for council  

  8 In negotiation 
with Diocese of 
St Albans and 
developer 

In negotiation  0 

Onslow school site  - 
funding to RP 

  10 In negotiation 
with Home group 
to provide 
additional homes 
on a wider 
residential 
development 60 -
70 homes. 
Planning 
application 
anticipated April 
17 

On target; 
negotiations 
underway  
 

0 

P
age 49



Affordable Housing Programme Overview February 2017 
 

6 
 

Current Schemes - targets 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Progress to date 
(February  2017) 

 

Cash Incentive Scheme  5 5 Scheme 
proposals being 
developed 

On target; 
research 
underway 

0 

 
 

P
age 50



1 
 

Appendix B 
 
Affordable Housing Programme (AHP)  
 

AHP Progress February 2017 (schemes underway) Total units 

 
The Council submitted planning applications for a second phase of former 
garage sites for disposal to the councils Registered Provider framework group. 
All six schemes have been approved and these are to be progressed with 
Welwyn Garden City Housing Association. This includes the land transfers and 
other related assembly issues, with start on sites on a phased programme for 
construction in 2017. Due to some unknowns at the tender stage some 
revisions to some schemes may be required. 
It is anticipated that the demolition of the Hillcrest garages will take place on 
the 20th February 
The properties will be for rent, owned by the RP with the council receiving 
nomination rights. 
 
Knightsfield / the Firs:   2 x 2 bedroom bungalows 
Little Ganett :                1 x 2 bed house 
Birchwood close :         1 x 2 bed house and 1 x 3 bed house 
Cowper Road WGC:    3 x 2 bed bungalows 
Breakmead  WGC:       5 x 3 bed houses  
Hillcrest Hatfield :         8 x 2 bed houses 
 
Examples below : 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
21 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Little Ganett 1 x 2 bed house 

 

Birchwood Close 1 x 
2 bed house and 1 x 
3 bed house 

 

Cowper Road 3 x 2 bed 
bungalows 

Page 51



 
 
 
 
Council Direct Construction 
The Council has obtained planning approval on two former garage sites at 
Garden Avenue and Furzen Crescent in Hatfield. Mears New Homes were 
selected to construct both scheme. They have demolished the vacant garages 
at Garden Avenue and ground works are underway  A formal opening event 
was completion the 31/10/16 The flats will be for rent and owned and managed 
by the council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
At Furzen Crescent site the demolition of the vacant garages has been 
completed. As part of the planning conditions further ground condition surveys 
are now complete and a full start now site is achieved. The houses will be for 
rent to be owned and managed by the council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A planning application for the provision of 16 new self contained flats in 
Northdown Road Hatfield, on the site of existing low demand bedsits, received 
approval in October and the schemes tendered to construction companies in 
December 16. Evaluation of submissions is complete and a recommendation 
on a construction partner will be reported to cabinet in April 17. Negotiations 
are complete with 2 existing leaseholders, 3 tenants and the Gap Homeless 
charity which currently leases a bedsit. The flats will be for rent and owned and 
managed by the council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
16 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Garden Avenue, 
Hatfield 14 x 2 bed 
flats and 8 x 1 bed 
flats 
 

Furzen Crescent, 
Hatfield 7 x 2 bed 
houses 
 

Northdown Road, 
Hatfield 16 x 1 bed flats 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 52



 
 
Council and RP Open Market Purchases 
We aim to purchase a total of 37 properties during 2016/17.   We are on target 
to identify all 37 this financial year. Thirty two have been purchased , two have 
offers accepted and one  property to be identified.  Our RP partners have 
purchased 4 properties a mix of 1 and 2 bed flats. Due to market conditions 
and property values the OMP initiative with RPs has stopped. 
 
 
Other schemes 
 
Little  Mead Hatfield   
Local resident consultation was completed in December 2016 and following 
feedback a suitable and revised planning application will be submitted in March 
17. Preparation is underway to tender the site to construction companies on 
receipt of planning approval. The scheme will deliver 4 x 3 bed houses and 3 x 
2 bed houses for rent, to be owned and managed by the council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All Saints  
 
Agreement has been reached between the All Saints Church in WGC and 
developer Rockwell Homes to deliver a new community facility for the church 
and provide 8 new 2 and 3 bed houses. The developer – Rockwell Homes - 
will construct the new facility for the church and the council are working to 
enter into an options agreement to purchase the homes on completion. The 
new homes will be for rent and owned and managed by the council.  
The legal documentation is being progressed and the developer  preparing to  
submitted a planning application for the scheme  
 
Further Opportunities 
 
Onslow site Hatfield  

 

 The Council is currently working with Home Housing Group as part of 
their proposal to deliver 70+ homes on part of the Onslow school site in 
Hatfield. A minimum of 30% of these homes should be delivered as 
affordable and part of the planning requirement, without grant.  
Evidence is now being prepared by Home Group in relation to 
development viability and the scheme may not support the full 30% 
requirement. On confirmation of such viability claims the council will 

 
 
 
32 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TBC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Little Mead 4 x 3 
bed and 3 x 2 
bed houses 

Page 53



consider  funding to secure additional affordable units.  Detailed 
negotiation with Home on exact numbers is to be agreed. A planning 
application is now expected in April 2017. The new homes will be 
owned and managed by the Registered Provider with nomination rights 
to the council. 

 

 Older person Housing / Sheltered / retirement housing  
 

 
Following the completion of the older person Housing survey and 
strategy one of the objectives is to deliver a new purpose built “older 
person “housing scheme. Detailed work is complete in relation to 
agreeing a site that also takes into account current use of existing 
sheltered schemes, options on remodeling and decommissioning. A 
report is to be considered at the March CHPP  that considers underused 
and unsuitable existing sheltered schemes and proposals for  
demolision and a new purpose built older person scheme provided.  The 
additional units provided as part of s scheme can be funded by the 
allowed amounts of RTB receipts and surpluses from the HRA. This is a 
medium term project that requires considerable staffing resources and 
careful management and support to existing residents. The proposal is 
that the building will be owned and managed by the council.   
 

 Temporary  accommodation 
 
Work is now under way to provide new temporary accommodation for 
homes less families as part of the council statutory responsibilities. 
Howlands House is being considered as an appropriate site with options 
on a phased demolition and new build scheme. The intention is that this 
will l provide more units to a better standards on the existing site. On 
completion of feasibility work and close working with the housing option 
team a planning application will be submitted. The intention will then be 
to seek a construction partner to deliver the scheme as the initiative 
progress. The proposal is that the new units will be owned and 
managed by the council 
 
 
 
 
A range of other initiaviatves are currently being considered and the 
CHPP will be updated as these progress. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TBC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TBC 

 

Page 54



 

 

Appendix C RTB 3rd Quarter March 2017 

0.00

10,000,000.00

20,000,000.00

30,000,000.00

40,000,000.00

50,000,000.00

60,000,000.00

70,000,000.00

80,000,000.00

90,000,000.00

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Required Expenditure Actual and Planned Expenditure

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Welwyn & Hatfield Borough Council Monitoring Report

Affordable Housing Programme 3 months to 31st December 2016

Headline Information Total

Receipts Information £/Nos

Sales in the Current Quarter 23 Q1

Q2

Value of Sales in the Current Quarter 2,241,968 Q3

Q4

Cumulative Sales to Date 383 Q1

Q2

Retained Receipts to Date 24,927,460 Q3

Q4

Used Receipts to Date 10,859,791 Q1

Q2

Total Unused Receipts 14,067,669 Q3

Q4

Additional Investment Required 32,824,561 Q1

Q2

Repaid Receipts to Date 1,657,518 Q3

(not included in Retained Receipts above) 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Q4

Q1

2016/17 Budget Information £ Q2

Q3

2016/17 Budget: Budget Variance

Adjusted at M6 for updated forecast 19,046,212

Forecast Expenditure 2016/17 17,375,392 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

£ £ £ £

Total 2016/17 Expenditure 11,128,163 Capital Budget 19,046,212 13,929,082 9,937,282 18,638,934

Expenditure Committed to 31/12/2016 5,062,202 Forecast Expenditure 17,375,392 15,529,749 14,766,729 18,195,590

Funding

Total Year to date Expenditure Identified 16,190,366

Right to Buy Receipts 7,687,493 5,172,725 3,646,185 7,149,180

£ £ £ HRA Revenue Contribution 3,700,000 0 0 0
RTB Attributable Debt 5,987,899 4,157,024 2,879,544 737,440

Level of receipts that must be 

spent in each quarter

Minimum 

requirement

Receipts     

Used

Potential 

Interest 

Charge Borrowing 0 6,200,000 8,241,000 10,308,970

Total 17,375,392 15,529,749 14,766,729 18,195,590

31st March 2017 1,982,375 1,982,375 0

30th June 2017 1,049,613 1,049,613 0

30th September 2017 1,307,680 287,319 157,140

31st December 2017 1,804,474 0 277,897

31st March 2018 2,090,135 0 321,890

30th June 2018 1,473,108 0 226,865

30th September 2018 80,280 0 12,363

31st December 2018 0 0 0

31st March 2019 1,784,321 0 274,793

Historic and Forecast Use of Receipts

Active Periods from 01/04/2012 to 31/12/2016

Forecast Budgets

Potential Repayment Information

0 

500 

1,000 

1,500 

2,000 

2,500 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 

Receipts Unallocated 

Receipts Unused 

Receipts Spent 

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Part I  
Item No: 9 
Main author: Dawn Murphy  
Executive Member: Cllr Mandy Perkins  
All Wards  

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL  
CABINET HOUSING AND PLANNING PANEL - 19 April 2017 
REPORT OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITIES) 
 
HOUSING ALLOCATION POLICY REVIEW 
 
1 Executive Summary  

 
1.1  The Council’s Housing Allocation Policy sets out the rules for the Council’s 

Housing Needs Register (“HNR”) and how priority is awarded to households, 
based on their housing need.  The Housing Needs Register is a list of all 
applicants looking for affordable, rented and low cost home ownership 
accommodation in the Welwyn Hatfield Borough.  This reflects issues such as 
overcrowding, health problems and homelessness.  

1.2 The Council works in partnership with four other Hertfordshire councils (St Albans, 
Hertsmere, Watford and Three Rivers) to provide a Choice Based Letting (CBL) 
system, whereby applicants registered on this Council’s Housing Needs Register 
place ‘bids’ for vacant properties that meet their needs. 

1.3  The Housing Allocation Policy was reviewed in 2012 in response to changes 
brought about by the Localism Act 2011, which gave councils greater freedom in 
the way in which they operate their HNR. After broad consultation, the revised 
policy was approved by full Council in January 2013 and the changes 
implemented that month. 

1.4  After a period of review, a report was brought to members in January 2015, setting 
out proposals for further minor changes to the current Housing Allocations Policy; 
these were approved for wider public consultation and adopted in October 2015.  

1.5 The Housing and Planning Act 2016 came into force on 12 May 2016 and 
introduced numerous changes to housing law and planning law, mainly intended 
to promote homeownership and boost levels of housebuilding in England.  A key 
element of this was the introduction of a Pay to Stay policy for council tenants, 
which stated that increased rental charges were to be made to tenants of council 
housing, based on incomes above £31,000.   

1.6 As a result of this policy, a review of the Council’s Housing Allocation Scheme was 
commenced, as it was important that access to social housing was in line with the 
proposed policy, particularly in consideration of an applicant’s resources/incomes. 

1.7 Whilst the government later amended the Pay to Stay policy, the review was 
already underway and it was agreed to continue with this as other proposed 
changes are being put forward for consideration. 

Page 59

Agenda Item 9



2 
 

2  Recommendation(s)  

2.1 Members approve the proposed changes set out in Appendix A of this report for 
 wider consultation with applicants and stakeholders. 

Implications  

3  Financial Implication(s)  

3.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 

4  Link to Corporate Priorities  

4.1  I confirm that the subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority, 
Meet the Borough’s housing needs, and specifically to the achievement of the 
priority - Making Best Use of our Housing Stock – set out in the council’s Housing 
and Homelessness Strategy 2013 – 2018 

4.2 The Under Occupation and Overcrowding Strategy 2015-2018 and the Tenancy 
Strategy 2013, which both aim to ensure the most effective use of the borough’s 
housing stock, are linked to the Housing Allocation Policy.  

 
5  Legal Implication(s)  

5.1  Under s.169 of the Housing Act 1996 (‘the 1996 Act’) Housing Authorities are 
required to have regard to this section in exercising their functions under Part 6 of 
the 1996 Act (‘Part 6’). Local Authorities are required to devise housing allocations 
schemes which give “reasonable preference” to certain categories of applicants.  

5.2 The Localism Act 2011 introduced significant amendments to Part 6, the main 
 objectives being to enable housing authorities to better manage their housing
 waiting list by giving them the power to determine which applicants do or do not 
 qualify for an allocation of social housing.   
 
5.3 Housing Authorities must publish a summary of their allocation scheme and when 

an alteration is made reflecting a major change of policy, an authority must ensure 
within a reasonable time that those likely to be affected by the change have the 
effect brought to their attention. 

 
6  Climate Change Implication(s)  

6.1  There are no Climate Change implications arising directly from this report.  

7  Risk Management Implications  

7.1  The risks related to this proposal are:  

7.2  Legal and Reputational – It is important to review key policies on a regular basis to 
ensure that they remain legally compliant and that the impact of policies is 
consistent with the aims and objectives. The recommendations in this report do 
not include change required by government regulation. 

Page 60



3 
 

8 Explanation  

8.1 The Housing and Planning Act 2016 introduced numerous changes to housing
 and planning law, mainly intended to promote homeownership and boost levels of  
 House building in England. 
 
8.2 This included the introduction of Pay to Stay, which required local authority 

tenants with a higher income to pay a higher rent.  As a result of a requirement for 
the Council to introduce this by April 2017, a review of the Council’s Housing 
Allocation Policy was commenced.  The requirement to implement the Pay to Stay 
policy generated this review, as it was important to ensure that the assessment of 
housing applicants’ resources was consistent with this policy. 

 
8.3 The proposed compulsory Pay to Stay policy applied to households with a taxable 

income of £31,000 or more. Households with an income above this level would be 
required to pay more rent. Any additional money collected had to be returned to 
the government, minus an allowance for administration costs.   Any household in 
receipt of Housing Benefit or Universal Credit were exempt from the policy. 

 
8.4 The government announced in November 2016 that they were no longer requiring 

the Council to introduce Pay to Stay on a compulsory basis, but that it would now 
be a voluntary scheme. 

 
8.5 The review of the Housing Allocation Policy had already begun and therefore it 

was agreed to continue with this piece of work.  Consultation took place with the 
Housing Needs and Housing Management teams, who implement this policy, and 
as a result there are a number of proposed changes. 

 
8.6 All the proposed changes aim to ensure that there is greater fairness and 

transparency in the way in which priority is awarded.  In some areas, the 
proposals seek to better manage expectations of applicants, where the current 
policy may be raising expectations that cannot be met.  The proposals are set out 
in detail in Appendix A, but in summary are: 
 
a) To no longer allow older home owners on the HNR unless in financial 

hardship or other exceptional circumstances would warrant this 
b) To amend the local connection criteria, so that a person establishes a local 

connection via employment in the district if they have had that employment 
for up to a minimum of five years 

c) To not award any priority or bedroom eligibility as a result of a pregnancy, 
but defer awarding additional priority until the baby is born and birth 
certificate received 

d) Applicants who have access to children are currently able to bid for 2 bed 
properties above the 3rd floor, remove this option as it does not result in an 
allocation  

e) To remove the current priority awarded where someone is living in 
unsanitary conditions, however to commit to an assessment of 
homelessness if someone is living in very poor circumstances or their home 
is potentially insanitary and award any associated priority based on this 
assessment. 

Page 61



4 
 

f) To not allow those with current or former tenant arrears on the HNR unless 
exceptional circumstances exist.  If there is a tenancy breach for a current 
tenant, they should not be allowed to join the HNR 

g) To give tenants living in properties that are to be decommissioned (that is 
changed from sheltered to general needs usage) the same priority as those 
moving from general needs housing to sheltered accommodation 
 

8.6 Even though the introduction of Pay to Stay is no longer compulsory, the review 
gave us the opportunity to consider the way in which we assess applicants’ (both 
new and transferring tenants) financial circumstances.  We want to ensure that 
social housing is allocated to those in the greatest need.  If an applicant or tenant 
has sufficient resources to find alternative housing options, they will not be given 
priority for allocation of social housing. Whilst there was a procedure in place for 
assessing this, the teams have reviewed this to ensure that it is sufficiently robust. 

 
8.7 The Council completed a borough wide consultation with residents from all tenures 

across the borough who were over 50, this was to help inform and develop a new 
older people’s housing strategy. The result highlighted the tenure was 
predominantly owner occupied at 60% and 31% of respondents were interested in 
renting from the Council in the future. This implied that some owner occupiers may 
be looking to change tenure to the social rented sector.  

 
8.8 Currently Home Owners over 60 + are accepted on the HNR in Band E and can 

bid and as a result a number of sheltered housing units have been let to current 
home owners over the last year. This is mainly because there are some sheltered 
housing schemes which are in low demand.  However as part of the review of the 
Council’s Sheltered Housing stock, other measures are being put in place to tackle 
low demand, including decommissioning of schemes (where the scheme is no 
longer used as sheltered housing), redevelopment of one scheme and 
remodelling/refurbishment of a number of blocks. 

 
8.9 On this basis it is proposed we no longer allow home owners on the HNR unless 

they are in financial hardship.  However if this proposal is accepted, we will ensure 
that home owners have access to comprehensive advice about other housing 
options that are available to them. 

 
8.9 During consultation with the Housing Needs Team and Housing Management  
 Team, further enquiries were generated and given consideration for change. The  
 proposals arising from the review are about improving fairness and transparency. 
 
 
9 Equality and Diversity  

9.1  An Equality Impact has been carried out.  There is a negative impact on age, due 
to the change proposed to remove older owner occupiers from the HNR. However 
this will be mitigated by advice about other available housing options and where 
there is financial hardship and/or exceptional circumstances, applicants will still be 
able to apply to join the HNR. 

Page 62



5 
 

9.2 There will be a positive impact on people who are older as a result of the proposal 
to provide additional priority to tenants who occupy decommissioned properties. 

9.3 There is a negative impact on people who are pregnant, as it is proposed that the 
additional priority awarded at the point at which they are six (6) month’s pregnant 
will be removed.  However overall it is considered reasonable to prioritise those 
who have children already, above those who are pregnant and therefore it is 
considered that this is a justifiable change.   

9.4 The proposal to prevent applicants who are in breach of their tenancy to join the 
HNR could have a negative impact on people with a disability, as they may be 
more likely to have issues in managing their tenancy.  However this is mitigated by 
the robust process we follow in taking action against people who are in breach, 
including tenancy support and signposting to other support services. 

9.5 The proposed consultation will ask for views on all the proposed areas of change 
and once the results are known, the Equality Impact Assessment will be reviewed. 

 

Name of author:  Dawn Murphy  
Date:    21 March 2017 
 
 

Page 63



6 
 

Appendix A  
 
Proposed Amendments to the Housing Allocation Policy 
 

Aspect of Policy  Current  Proposal  Reasoning Comments Stats 
Available 

a)  
 
Home Owners 
accepted onto 
the HNR 

Home 
Owners 
over 60 + 
are 
accepted 
onto the 
HNR in 
Band E and 
can bid 

No longer 
allow home 
owners on 
the HNR 
unless in 
financial 
hardship  

Property prices in this 
area are high and most 
will have the financial 
resource to source 
other accommodation 

12 current 
or former 
home 
owners 
housed into 
sheltered 
accommoda
tion in 2016  

Band E Lets 
Jan-Dec 16  

b) 
 
Local connection  

Employed 
in the 
Borough for 
12 months 
(16 hrs. pw 
on 
permanent  
contract)  

Extend 
period of 
employment 
up to a 
minimum of 
five years 

Applicants quite often 
have no other 
connection to this area 
and due to their 
circumstances, may be 
highly placed on the 
HNR 

Include as 
part of 
consultation 
whether the 
period of 
employment 
should be 
for 3, 5 or 7 
years 

Local 
connection 
through work 
only 

c)  
 
Consideration of 
Maternity 
Certificate 
(MATB1)  

Priority 
given once 
MATB1 
received for 
both priority 
(for 
example 
overcrowdin
g) and 
eligibility for 
size of 
property – 
for example 
eligibility for 
a two 
bedroom, 
rather than 
one.  

Do not 
award any 
priority or 
bedroom 
eligibility 
until baby is 
born and 
birth 
certificate is 
received 

Currently this means 
priority is given before 
the baby is born and 
can mean pregnant 
women are housed 
before those with 
children already born. 

 This priority 
currently 
comes into 
place once the 
woman is 
more than six 
month’s 
pregnant.  If 
the proposed 
change is 
made, it is not 
be applied in 
retrospect to 
anyone who 
has already 
been awarded 
additional 
priority. 

d) 
 
Contact with 
children  

Those with 
contact with 
children are 
able to 
queue for 2 
beds above 
the 3rd floor 

Remove This policy was put in 
place when the levels 
of housing need were 
less pressing than 
currently.  Therefore, 
on occasions, higher 
level flats were less in 
demand.  This is never 
the case now and the 
policy raises 
expectations and never 
results in an allocation 

Off those 
let, none 
went to 
applicants 
without 
children 

2 beds 3rd floor  

Page 64



7 
 

Aspect of Policy  Current  Proposal  Reasoning Comments Stats 
Available 

e) 
 
Living in 
unsanitary 
conditions  

If awarded  
applicants 
are placed 
in Band A 

Remove as 
this is 
ambiguous.  
Cases like this 
are so rare 
and we would 
refer them to 
the Private 
Sector Team 
for a full 
assessment of 
the property.  If 
property 
uninhabitable, 
they would be 
homeless and 
would be 
referred to the 
Housing 
Advice Team 

If condition of 
property is that 
bad, can be dealt 
with through 
homeless 
legislation if 
Temporary 
Accommodation is 
needed.  If 
improvements 
needed, this can 
be done working 
with the Private 
Sector Team.  

Only 3 
applicants 
have been 
placed in this 
category in 
2016  

Band A Lets  

f) 
 
Tenants in breach 
of their tenancy 
conditions 

Are able 
to register 
on HNR 
and bid.  
Those 
with rent 
arrears 
are placed 
in Pending 
but once 
arrears 
are 
cleared 
they have 
an early 
date in 
band 

Do not allow 
those with 
current or 
former arrears 
on HNR.  If 
tenancy 
breach for a 
current tenant, 
they should 
not be allowed 
to join HNR 
rather than be 
in Pending 

Once arrears are 
cleared, the 
applicant has a 
significant 
advantage, based 
on the length of 
time they have 
been on the list, we 
want to establish a 
fairer system which 
better rewards 
tenants who are 
maintaining their 
rent payments 
 

Agreement 
from Housing 
Management 
and Housing 
Needs  

None  

g) 
 
Decommissioning 
of Sheltered 
Housing 
accommodation 
where demand is 
low for this type of 
accommodation 

Not done  Give tenants 
living in 
properties that 
will be 
decommission
ed the same 
priority as 
those moving 
from General 
Needs to 
sheltered  

To assist in making 
the rehousing 
process quicker 

  

 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part 1 
Item No: 10 
Main author: Peter Gray  
Executive Member: Cllr Mandy Perkins 

 
 
WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING AND PLANNING PANEL – 19 APRIL 2017 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITIES) 

MEASURES TO INCREASE CUSTOMER SATISFACTION WITH THE GAS SERVICING, 

BREAKDOWN AND NEW INSTALLATIONS PROGRAMME  

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This brief report is to update Members on the actions being proposed to improve 
customer satisfaction levels resulting from work carried out by the Councils 
contracted gas service and breakdown contractor – TSG Ltd.  

1.2 The report highlights current customer satisfaction levels across the three areas 
(gas boiler installations, annual servicing and responsive repairs), an explanation 
of the current satisfaction levels and the steps proposed to increase satisfaction 
levels during 2017/18.   

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 It is recommended that Cabinet Housing and Planning Panel: 

2.2 Notes the report.  

3 Explanation 

3.1 Installations -  during 2016 / 17, high customer satisfaction was achieved during 
the summer months (100%) however this reduced to an average of 88% during 
the period October 2016 to January 2017. Analysis of the data has established 
that a higher than anticipated volume of installations were required during the 
period (average 80 per month compared with 50 per month during the summer) 
which impacted on the volume of supervision and third party quality assurance 
required. The programme of installations for 2017 / 18 will be set at a more 
manageable 50 per month on average and enhanced quality assurance 
guidelines have been put in place. 

3.2 Servicing – an average customer satisfaction of 90.83% has been experienced 
with a target of 97%. A greater volume of annual services (1,000 per month 
compared with 900 per month) has impacted on both Council and TSG 
resources. A review of the gas access letters and associated escalation process 
is underway with staff from the Councils Housing and Legal teams to work more 
collaboratively to address this matter, and the programme of servicing for 2017 / 
18 being reduced to a more manageable 900 per month will improve satisfaction 
feedback.  

3.3 Gas / heating responsive repairs – a steady decline in customer satisfaction 
during Q4 has been recorded (average of 80.74% against a target of 97%). This 
can partly be attributed to a seasonal increase in gas related repairs being 
reported and the subsequent impact on resources. This has aided production of 

Page 67

Agenda Item 10



- 2 - 

a 5 year new installation programme which will reduce the volume of required 
repairs and in turn increase customer satisfaction for new installations and 
responsive repairs to heating systems.  

3.4 A simpler method of capturing customer satisfaction will presently be piloted. 
Utilising text messaging, a simple “Yes” / “No” response regarding the 
satisfaction of the gas servicing or repair will generate a personal response to the 
customer in the form of a telephone call from a member of the Property Services 
team to discuss the reason for the dissatisfaction. If successful, this format of 
customer satisfaction survey will be deployed across other areas of work 
including responsive repairs and planned works.  Alternative survey methods for 
customers with no access to mobile phones will be available, using a revised 
written survey.   

4 Legal Implication(s)  
 
4.1 Gas related work to tenanted properties is covered by “The Gas Safety 

(Installation and Use) Regulations 1998” and the Council has in place procedures 
to meet the requirements of this legislation.  

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 The service improvements described above will be managed with existing 
resources. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1  Satisfactory measures are in place to manage reputational, health & safety risks 
and risks associated with meeting the requirements of “The Gas Safety 
(Installation and Use) Regulations 1998”.   

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 None directly arising from this report.  

8 Procurement Implication(s) 
 
8.1 None directly arising from this report. 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 None directly arising from this report. 

10 Link to Corporate Priorities 

10.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priorities “Meet the 
borough’s housing needs” 

11 Equality and Diversity 

 An Equality Impact Assessment will be carried out prior to the new arrangements being 
finalised. 
 
Name of author Peter Gray  
Title Interim Head of Property Services (Housing)   
Date 4 April 2017  

Page 68


	Agenda
	6 PARKING SERVICES UPDATE AND FUTURE WORK PROGRAMMES:
	07a - Appendix A - Parking Services Work Programmes 2017-18 April 17

	7 HOUSING WHITE PAPER CONSULTATION RESPONSE:
	8 AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAMME MONITORING REPORT:
	appendix A Overview of progress AHP 08 16
	Appendix B - AHP monitoring App B Q1 16 17 08 16
	09c1 - Appendix C RTB 3rd Quarter March 2017
	Appendix c Financial Monitoring Report 3rd Quarter 20116-17

	9 HOUSING ALLOCATION POLICY REVIEW:
	10 MEASURES TO INCREASE CUSTOMER SATISFACTION WITH THE GAS SERVICING, BREAKDOWN AND NEW INSTALLATIONS PROGRAMME - UPDATE:

